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The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Grupo Sports World, S. A. B. de C. V.
102-18, 102-22, 102-23, 102-27, 405-1

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Grupo Sports World, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries (the 
Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the consol-
idated statements of comprehensive income, changes in stockholders´ equity and cash flows for the years then ended, 
and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated 
financial position of Grupo Sports World, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and its con-
solidated results and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with International Financial Re-
porting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditors´ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Mexico, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters.

Long-lived assets
See notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matter 
There is an inherent risk in the recoverability of long-lived assets due to external market and other factors. The impairment 
of long-lived assets is considered a relevant audit matter because it involvesjudgments in its assessment and cash flows 
projections and underlying assets used.

How the key matter was addressed in our audit 
As part of our audit procedures, we tested the controls designed and applied by the Group to ensure that its impair-
ment analysis is appropriately performed and reviewed. We evaluated the identification of the cash generating units, 
the impairment indicators used by Management, as well as the judgment involved and conclusions about the existence 
of impairment indicators. In addition, through the participation of our specialists, we evaluated the cash flows, including 
the discount rate in the models used and the adequacy of the disclosures contained in the notes to these consolidated 
financial statements.

Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the An-
nual report for the year ended December 31, 2017, which will be presented to the National Banking and Stock Commission 
and to the Mexican Stock Exchange (the “Annual Report”) but does not include the consolidated financial statements 
and our auditors´ report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be available for us after the date of our independent 
auditors´ report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

AUDITORS' REPORT
INDEPENDENT
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Once we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, then we 
are required to report that fact to those charged with governance of the Group.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated F nancial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statments in accor-
dance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the Group´s ability to contin-
ue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group´s financial reporting process. 

Auditors´ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors´ report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISA 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

–	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

–	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Grouṕs internal control.

–	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by Management.

–	 Conclude on the appropriateness of Management´s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Group´s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors´ report to the related disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors´ report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

–	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

–	 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsi-
ble for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our 
audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical require-
ments regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors´ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of such communication.

KPMG Cárdenas Dosal S. C.
Francisco José Sánchez González
Mexico City, February 20, 2018.
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GRUPO SPORTS WORLD, S. A. B. DE C. V. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Thousands of Mexican pesos)

ASSETS NOTE 2017 2016

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 7 $ 68,792 134,269

Accounts receivable, net 8 79,808 23,986

Inventory 4f 5,153 8,463

Prepayments 4e 34,192 24,813 

Total current assets 187,945 191,531 

Non-current assets:

Derivative financial instruments 14 1,214 2,082

Leasehold improvements, construction
in progress, furniture and equipment, net 9 1,394,054 1,206,292

Deferred income taxes 17 173,357 131,374

Goodwill 10 53,188 53,188

Intangible assets, net 10 30,414 13,056

Other assets, net 4i 45,682 44,299 

Total non-current assets 1,697,909 1,450,291

Total assets $ 1,885,854 1,641,822

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY NOTA 2017 2016

Current liabilities:

Current installments of long-term debt 11 $ 104,246 231,568

Current installments of long-term financial lease 12 3,054 3,634

Accounts payable 13 100,250 70,853

Other accounts payable and accrued expenses 74,417 42,872

Income taxes payable 14,573 6,332

Deferred income from maintenance fees 4q 194,060 178,990

Total current liabilities 490,600 534,249 

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term debt 11 428,542 182,787

Long-term financial lease 12 19,436 22,645

Employee benefits 15 12,303 9,243

Payable and deferred rents 2,637 3,234 

Total non-current liabilities 462,918 217,909 

Total liabilities 953,518 752,158 

Stockholders' equity:

Capital stock 18 222,165 222,165

Premium reserve for shares issued 18 353,438 353,438

Reserve for own shares 18 (50,924) (40,965)

Comprehensive income 18 3,009 3,093

Retained earnings 404,648 351,933 

Total stockholders' equity 932,336 889,664

Commitments and contingencies 20 y 21
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 1,885,854 1,641,822

The consolidated statements of financial position should be read together with the accompanying notes to consolidated finan-
cial statements on pages 9 to 67.
These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Management on February 20, 2018 and signed on its behalf by 
Simón Fabián Morales Carpio, Administrative and Financial Officer.

GRUPO SPORTS WORLD, S. A. B. DE C. V. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Thousands of Mexican pesos)

NOTE 2017 2016

Revenue from:

Maintenance fees and memberships $ 1,373,052 1,167,503

Sponsorships and other business activities  292,790 196,370 

Total revenues 1,665,842 1,363,873

Operating expenses from:

Personnel services 526,949 428,095

Advertising 45,269 34,340

Depreciation and amortization 180,996 158,665

Lease expenses 406,346 356,315

Commissions and fees 53,307 43,882

Other expenses and operating expenses  341,214 273,015 

Total operating expenses 1,554,081 1,294,312

Finance cost:

Interest expense 56,261 34,416

Interest income (7,693) (3,209)

Foreign exchange loss, net 760 2,176

Valuation effects of derivative financial instruments 14  868 (3,351)

Finance cost, net  50,196 30,032 

Income before income taxes 61,565 39,529

Income taxes 17  8,818 9,806 

Net income 52,747 29,723 

Other comprehensive (income) loss:

Items that are not subsequently reclassified to 
profit or loss on the period

Net actuarial (gains) losses of benefits plan 15 120 (2,240)

Income taxes of other comprehensive income 17  (36) 672 

Total comprehensive loss (income), net of taxes 84 (1,568)

Total comprehensive income $ 52,663 31,291

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (in Mexican pesos) 19 $ 0.66 0.37

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Management on February 20, 2018 and signed on its behalf by 
Simón Fabián Morales Carpio, Administrative and Financial Officer.
The consolidated statements of comprehensive income should be read together with the accompanying notes to consolidated 
financial statements on pages 9 to 67.
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GRUPO SPORTS WORLD, S. A. B. DE C. V. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Thousands of Mexican pesos)

RETAINED EARNINGS

NOTE
CAPITAL 

STOCK

PREMIUM 
RESERVE 

FOR SHARES 
ISSUED

RESERVE 
FOR OWN 

SHARES
COMPREHENSIVE 

INCOME
STATUTORY 

RESERVE
TO BE 

APPLIED TOTAL

TOTAL 
STOCKHOLDERS' 

EQUITY

Balances as of December 31, 2015 $ 222,165 353,438 (40,880) 1,525 14,930 307,280 322,210 858,458 

Aplication to statutory reserve - - - - 1,584 (1,584) - -

Repurchase of shares 18 - - (2,155) - - - - (2,155)

Accrued cost for shares-based payments 18 - - 2,070 - - - - 2,070

Comprehensive income 17(b)  - - - 1,568 - 29,723 29,723 31,291 

Balances as of December 31, 2016 222,165 353,438 (40,965) 3,093 16,514 335,419 351,933 889,664

Aplication to statutory reserve - - - - 1,486 (1,486) - -

Repurchase of shares 18 - - (10,565) - - (32) (32) (10,597)

Accrued cost for shares-based payments 18 - - 606 - - - - 606

Comprehensive income 17(b) - - - (84) - 52,747 52,747 52,663 

Balances as of December 31, 2017 $  222,165 353,438 (50,924) 3,009 18,000 386,648 404,648 932,336

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Management on February 20, 2018 and signed on its behalf 
by Simón Fabián Morales Carpio, Administrative and Financial Officer.
The consolidated statements of changes in stockholders' equity should be read together with the accompanying notes to 
consolidated financial statements on pages 9 to 67.
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GRUPO SPORTS WORLD, S. A. B. DE C. V. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Thousands of Mexican pesos)

(1) REPORTING ENTITY-
102-1, 102-4, 102-45

Grupo Sports World, S. A. B. de C. V. (Grupo Sports World), was incorporated in Mexico on March 2, 2005 and 
started operations on July 7, 2005. These consolidated financial statements comprise Grupo Sports World and its 
subsidiaries, collectively called “the Company”. The main activity of the Company is the operation of sports clubs 
and offering integral services in sports and recreational areas with highly trained personnel. 

As of December 31, 2017, the Company operates 57 clubs; 41 located in Mexico City and its metropolitan area, 
and 16 located in eleven States of the Mexican Republic. Up to date, the Company has signed three agreements 
in shared operation; these clubs do not operate under the “Sports World” brand. 

Grupo Sports World is listed on the Mexican Stock Exchange (BMV). The Company has an investor who directly and 
indirectly holds a significant percentage of the Company and participates in relevant decisions through a Trust.

(2) BASIS OF PREPARATION-

(a) Statement of compliance-
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), adopted by 
public entities in Mexico in accordance with the amendments to the Rules for Public Companies and other Entities 
Trading on the Mexican Stock Exchange Market, established by the National Banking and Securities Commission 
in Mexico (NBV), according to which beginning in 2012, the Company is required to prepare financial statements 
in accordance with IFRS. 

On February 20, 2018, the Management of Grupo Sports World on its behalf by Simón Fabián Morales Carpio, 
Administrative and Financial Officer, authorized the issuance of the accompanying consolidated financial state-
ments and related notes thereto.

In accordance with the General Corporations Law and the bylaws of the Company, the stockholders are empow-
ered to modify the consolidated financial statements after issuance. The accompanying consolidated financial 
statements will be submitted to the next Stockholders´ Meeting for approval.

(b) Basis of accounting-
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for derivative financial 
instruments and liabilities of employee benefits, which are recorded at fair value at the end of each reporting period.

(c) Functional and reporting currency-
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of Mexican pesos (“pesos” or 
“$”), Mexico's national currency, which is the Company's functional currency and the currency in which the con-
solidated financial statements are presented. 

For purposes of disclosure in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, when reference is made to pesos 
or "$", it is Mexican pesos, and when referring to dollars, it is "thousands" of United States dollars. from America.

(d) Use of estimates and judgments-
The preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires man-
agement to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and 
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Reviews to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

2016 2015

Cash flows from operating activities:
Income before income taxes $ 61,565 39,529

Adjustments:

Depreciation and amortization 180,996 158,665

Cost accrued by shares assigned 606 2,070

Net period cost of employees benefits 2,940 2,843

Valuation effects of derivate financial instruments 868 (3,351)

Interest expense, net 48,568 31,207 

Cash generated from operating activities before
changes in working capital and accruals 295,543 230,963 

Accounts receivable, net (55,822) 375

Prepayments and inventory of materials (6,069) 649

Accounts payable 14,112 (38,215)

Provisions, rents payable and employee benefits 30,948 4,353

Deferred income from maintenance fees 15,070 28,647 

Cash provided by operating activities
before income taxes paid 293,782 226,772

Income taxes paid (42,524) (9,888)

Net cash provided by operating activities 251,258 216,884

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment (346,379) (185,667)

Increase net in intangible assets and others assets (25,835) (7,204)

Interest received 7,693 3,209 

Net cash used in investing activities (364,521) (189,662)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from loans 410,000 115,000

Interest paid (56,261) (34,416)

Payments on loans (291,567) (126,481)

Payments on financial lease obligations (3,789) (3,055)

Sale of shares of the reserve for shares repurchase (32) -

Repurchase of shares, net  (10,565) (2,155)

Net cash provided by financing activities 47,786 (51,107)

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (65,477) (23,885)

Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 134,269 158,154 

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31 $ 68,792 134,269

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Management on February 20, 2018 and signed on its behalf by 
Simón Fabián Morales Carpio, Administrative and Financial Officer.
The consolidated statements of cash flows should be read together with the accompanying notes to consolidated financial 
statements on pages 9 to 67.

GRUPO SPORTS WORLD, S. A. B. DE C. V. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016
(Thousand of Mexican pesos)
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The following notes to the consolidated financial statements include information on estimates and assumptions that 
are critical in the application of accounting policies that have significant effects on the amounts recognized in the 
consolidated financial statements: 

i)	 In conducting the asset impairment tests on non-current assets, the Company requires to perform estimates 
in the value in use assigned to leasehold improvements, construction in progress, furniture and equipment, 
and goodwill, as well as other non-current assets, in the case of certain assets. The calculations of the value 
in use require that the Company determines the future cash flows that should arise from cash-generating 
units and an appropriate discount rate for calculating the current value. The Company uses cash flow pro-
jections of income considering estimates of market conditions, determination of sales prices and volumes.

ii)	 The Company reviews the estimated useful life of leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment at the 
end of every annual period, the estimated useful life of every component of an item, as it better reflects the 
expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. 

iii)	 The Company uses estimates in determining the allowances for doubtful accounts receivable. The factors 
considered in the allowances for doubtful accounts are primarily the risk of unsecured accounts and collec-
tion delays in accordance with the credit limits established. 

iv)	 The Company is subject to contingent transactions or events on which judgment is applied on developing 
estimates of occurrence probability; the factors considered in these estimates are the current legal situa-
tion as of the estimate date and the opinion from legal advisors. 

v)	 The estimates for determining the accrual of the stock compensation plan given to officers include the 
probability of permanence in the Company at the end of the plan, based on the last three-year turnover. 

vi)	 The Company makes estimates in the calculation of temporary items, where it conducts asset recoverabili-
ty assessments and deferral in the payment of deferred tax liabilities. This assessment requires a judgment 
including the projection of revenues and tax profits.

vii)	 Defined benefit plan: the obligations of the Company regarding seniority Premium which by law must be 
given under certain conditions, are calculated by estimating the amount of future benefits accrued by 
employees in exchange for their services in the current and past periods; that benefit is discounted to de-
termine its present value. The calculation is performed annually by a qualified method using the projected 
unit credit actuary.

Assumptions in estimates of fair value

For the issue of the accompanying consolidated financial statements, the Company reviews the significant ob-
servable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used, such as broker quotes or price vendor 
services, to estimate the fair value, the Company evaluates the evidence obtained from third parties to support the 
conclusion that these estimates satisfy the requirements of IFRS, including the level within the fair value hierarchy 
within which should be classified. When the fair value of a financial asset or liability is estimated, the Company uses 
observable market data whenever possible, and even information from their counterparts. The fair value is classified 
at different levels within a fair value hierarchy, which is based on the variables used in the valuation techniques, as 
shown below:

•	 Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
•	 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 

either directly or indirectly.
•	 Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the variables used in estimating the fair value of a financial asset or liability can be classified into different levels 
within the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the 
hierarchy of fair value the lowest level variable that is significant to the overall measurement.

Note 5(e) contains additional information related to the assumptions made in estimating the fair value of derivative 
financial instruments.

(3) BASIS FOR CONSOLIDATION-

The consolidated financial statements include the accounting information from of Grupo Sports World, S. A. B. de C. 
V. and those of its subsidiaries in which it has more than 99% control of capital stock and/or exercises control. 

Control is achieved when the Company:

•	 Has power over the investee;
•	 Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
•	 Has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are 
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when 
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilateral-
ly. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company´s voting 
rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

•	 The size of the Company´s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the 
other vote holders;

•	 Potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;
•	 Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
•	 Any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current 

ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns 
at previous shareholders´ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the 
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of 
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from 
the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in preparing these consolidated finan-
cial statements. The consolidation was based on the audited financial statements of the issuing companies as of 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRS.

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the subsidiary companies, all of Mexican origin, are as follows: 

OWNERSHIP MAIN ACTIVITY

Operadora y Administradora SW, S. A. de C. V. 99.99% Operating

Grupo Concentrador de Servicios, S. A. de C. V. 99.99% Administrative services 

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently for all periods presented in these consolidated financial 
statements:

(a)	 Basis of consolidation-

(i)	 Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included 
in the consolidated financial statements of the Company from the date that control commenced until the 
date that control ceases. The accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been adapted, as required to 
conform to the accounting policies adopted by the Company.
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(ii)	 Balances and transactions between Company´s entities, as well as unrealized gains and losses, have been 
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same 
way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

	 In respect of the acquisitions made prior to January 1, 2011, goodwill represents the amount recognized 
under the accounting standards previously fulfilled by the Company. 

(b)	 Segment information-
Grupo Sports World operates sport clubs that are primarily located in the metropolitan area of Mexico City, as well as in 
other States of the Mexican Republic. 

The business rules are equally applicable to all clubs independently from their geographic location, all clubs have the 
same sport offer and the basic equipment table. 

The Executive Committee, jointly with the person responsible for each club, measure and review the indicators used 
in evaluating the performance of each club, and undertake by consensus the actions necessary to correct or assign 
resources to the clubs. 

Based on the foregoing characteristics, no segment reporting are disclosed. 

(c)	 Foreign currency-
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Company at exchange 
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency at the reporting 
date are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that time. Exchange differences arising from 
conversion are recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

(d)	 Non-derivative financial instruments-
Non-derivative financial instruments primarily include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, debt, financial 
lease and trade accounts payable.

(i)	 Non-derivative financial assets
The Company initially recognizes accounts receivable and other receivables on the date that they are 
originated.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 
expire, or transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows of the financial asset in a transaction in 
which substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest 
in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a separate 
asset or liability 

(ii)	 Non-derivative financial liabilities
The Company initially recognizes financial liabilities on the trade date at which the Company becomes 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or can-
celled, or expire.

The Company has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: long-term debt, suppliers, other accounts 
payable, income taxes payable, and finance lease, mainly.

Such financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value less costs directly attributable to the transac-
tion. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method.

(iii)	 Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge exposures to interest rate risks. While these 
instruments are not designated for hedge accounting perspective, these instruments have a specific busi-
ness purpose as they are acquired for hedging from an economic perspective.

(e)	 Prepaid expenses-
Prepaid expenses include mainly trading sponsorships, prepaid rents, services, licenses, and insurances, which are rec-
ognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the year and/or period in which they are incurred. 

The rights for compensation of trading exchanges and sponsorships are recognized as a short or long term prepayment 
at the moment of executing the contracts and are transferred to an account receivable once invoiced, in accordance 
with the established dates. When there are rights and obligations arising from the same contract, balances are offset. 

As a result of the implementation of the employee stock compensation plan, the remuneration received by employees 
other than stock is recognized as a prepaid expense, which will be accrued as the expense for such plan is recognized. 
As of December 2017, these payments had been totally recognized.

All lease-contracts provide rent prepayment at the moment of executing the contracts, which are recognized in the 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the period, in the first months when the clubs are opened.

(f)	 Inventory of materials-
Inventory includes mainly materials for the operation on clubs, personnel uniforms for the clubs to provide services, and 
spare parts for the clubs’ sport equipment. The cost of uniforms is recognized in the consolidated statements of com-
prehensive income for the period in which they are assigned to the employees. 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in-
first out basis.

(g)	 Leasehold improvements, construction in progress, furniture and equipment-

(i)	 Recognition and measurement
Leasehold improvements, construction in progress, furniture and equipment, are measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of leasehold 
improvements constructed for own use includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other cost 
directly attributable to bringing the assets to useable conditions and financing cost of qualifying assets.

When parts of an item of leasehold improvements, construction in progress, furniture and equipment 
have different useful lives, they are recorded as separate components (major components) of leasehold 
improvements, construction in progress, furniture and equipment.

Gains and losses on sale of an item of furniture and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds 
from the sale against the net carrying value of furniture and equipment and are recognized within “other 
operating income and expenses” in profit or loss, when occurs.

(ii)	 Subsequent costs
The replacement cost of an item of leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment is recognized in the 
carrying value when it is probable that future economic benefits of such item flows to the Company and 
their cost can be determined reliably. The net book value of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs 
of day to day operation of leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment are recognized in profit or 
loss as incurred.

(iii)	 Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on the amount subject to depreciation, which is the cost of an asset, or other 
amount to replace at cost, less its residual value.

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss using the straight-line method according to the estimated useful 
lives of each component of an item of leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment, since this better 
reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits included in the asset. 

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the term of the lease agreement or useful life of assets, 
unless there is reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership of the leased assets at the 
end of the lease.
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Depreciation rates of the major groups of assets listed below:

ANNUAL RATES

Leasehold improvements 5% to 20%

Gym equipment 12.5% and 20%

Audio and video equipment 40%

Computer equipment 40%

Transportation equipment 25%

Office and club furniture and equipment 20%

Machinery 10%

Maintenance costs and minor repairs are expensed as incurred. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the 
maintenance costs amount to $29,437 and $22,454, respectively and are included in other expenses in the 
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each year and adjusted, if 
necessary.

(iv)	 Advance to suppliers
Prepayments for construction of leasehold improvements and purchase of machinery and equipment 
for clubs are recognized as prepayments and advances to suppliers, provided that the benefits and risks 
inherent to property to be acquired are not yet transferred to the entity and stated as non-current assets.

(h)	 Intangible assets-
These assets represent costs incurred that the Company has determined that will have future economic benefits and 
meet certain requirements for its recognition as assets. Research cost, as well as disbursements during the development 
stage that do not meet such requirements are recorded in the statement of comprehensive income of the period in which 
they are incurred.

The Company classifies intangible assets as having either indefinite or definite useful lives, based on the period in which 
the Company expects to receive the benefits.

(i)	 Assets with indefinite useful lives
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulat-
ed impairment losses.

(ii)	 Assets with defined useful lives
These assets are mainly related to costs incurred in the development phase of an enterprise resource 
planning system, licenses for ground use, the rights to exploit certain sports programs, as well as the use of 
the trademark “Sports World”. These assets are measured at cost, less accumulated amortization and any 
accumulated impairment losses.

(iii)	 Subsequent expenditures
Subsequent expenditures are only capitalized when the future benefits included in the relevant asset in-
crease. The other disbursements are recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income 
as incurred.

(iv)	 Amortization
Amortization is computed on the asset cost or other amount that replaces the cost, less its residual value. 

Amortization is recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income using the straight-
line method, based on the estimated useful life of intangible assets, other than goodwill, from the date 
they are available for use, as it better reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future eco-
nomic benefits embodied in the asset. Below are the estimated useful lives for the current periods and a 
comparison thereof:

ANNUAL RATES

• Other intangibles assets and rights 5 and 10 years

• Software – Development costs 3 years

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values of intangible assets are reviewed at the end of each 
year and adjusted if necessary. 

(i) Other assets-
Other assets include mainly security deposits on leased property, which are recorded at the cash value paid as collater-
al that is expected to be recovered at the end of the lease.

(j)	 Leasing-
Leases are classified as financial leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

(i)	 The Company as lessor
Rental income (sublease) from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the 
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(ii)	 The Company as lessee
Lease payments are apportioned between financial expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as 
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Financial expenses are rec-
ognized immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case 
they are capitalized in accordance with the Company´s general policy on borrowing costs (see note 4(r).

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The 
lease incentives received are recognized as an integral part of the total lease expenses during the term of 
the lease.

(iii)	 Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
At inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether such an arrangement is or contains 
a lease. A specific asset is leased if the fulfilment of the agreement depends on the use of that asset. An 
agreement transfers the right to use the good and the agreement transfers to the Company the right to 
control the use of the corresponding good. 

At reception or on reassessment of the arrangement, the Company separates payments and other con-
sideration required by such an arrangement into those for the lease and those for other elements on the 
basis of their relative fair values. f the Company concludes for a financial lease that it is impracticable to 
separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognized at an amount equal to the fair 
value of the underlying asset. Subsequently, the liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed 
financial cost on the liability is recognized using the Company´s incremental borrowing rate.

(k)	 Goodwill-
Goodwill represents the future economic benefits that arise from other assets acquired that are not individually identifi-
able or separately recognized as a result of the acquisition of subsidiaries, which control is obtained. Goodwill is carried 
at cost as established at the date of the acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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(l)	 Impairment-

(i)	 Financial assets
A financial asset not classified as at fair value through profit or loss, is assessed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if there is 
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recogni-
tion of the asset, and that loss event had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that 
can be estimated reliably.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or delinquency by a debtor, restruc-
turing of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise, indi-
cations that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, and economic conditions that correlate with defaults 
or the disappearance of an active market for a security. In addition, for an investment in an equity securi-
ty, a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for receivables at both individual asset and a collective 
level. All individually significant receivables are individually assessed for impairment. Those found not to 
be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not 
yet identified. Receivables that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by 
grouping together receivables and investment securities with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses historical trends of the probability of default, the 
timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted by the analysis made by Management as 
to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater 
or lesser than suggested by historical trends.

Changes in provisions for impairment attributable to time value are reflected as a component of 
interest income.

(ii)	 Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company´s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax 
assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. 
If indicators of impairment are identified, then the asset´s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill and 
indefinite-lived intangible assets are tested annually for impairment.

For purposes of the impairment tests, the assets that may not be individually tested, are included in 
smaller groups of assets that produce cash inflows due to continuous use and that are mostly independent 
of cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash generating unit”). For purposes of goodwill 
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business acquisition is allocated to the group of cash generating 
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies created by the combination. The allocation is subject 
to a ceiling test of the operating segment and reflects the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored 
for internal reporting purposes. The recovery value of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the greater 
between the value in use and the fair value less the cost of sales.

In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted at present value using the 
discount rate before taxes that reflects the current market assessments of the value of money over time 
and the specific asset risks.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying value of an asset or its cash-generating unit exceeds its 
recovery value. The impairment losses are recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive 
income. The impairment losses recorded regarding the cash-generating units are firstly allocated to reduce 
the carrying value of any goodwill that has been allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying 
value of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a prorating basis. 

No impairment loss is reversed with respect of goodwill. Regarding other assets, the impairment losses 
recognized in previous periods are evaluated as of the reporting date to determine whether there is an 
indication that the loss reduced or no longer exists. An impairment loss will only be reversed if a change 
has occurred in the estimates used in determining the recovery value. An impairment loss is only reversed 
insofar as the carrying value of the asset does not exceed the carrying value that would have been deter-
mined net of depreciation or amortization, should any impairment loss have been previously determined.

(m)	Employee benefits-

(i)	 Long-term employee benefits
The Company´s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit 
that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The benefit is dis-
counted to determine its present value. Any actuarial gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss in the 
period in which they arise.

(ii)	 Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when it is demonstrably committed, without realistic 
possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the normal re-
tirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer that is made to encourage voluntary 
redundancy.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the project-
ed unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting pe-
riod. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling 
(if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the statement 
of financial position with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in 
which they occur. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in 
retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss 
in the period of a plan amendment. 

Net interest are calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined 
benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

•	 Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtail-
ments and settlements).

•	 Net interest expense or income, and
•	 Remeasurement.

Any liability for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw 
the offer of the termination benefit and when the entity recognizes any related restructuring costs.

(iii)	 Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the 
related service is provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term wages, salaries, vacations, 
sick leave, cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obliga-
tion to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be 
estimated reliably.

(iv)	 Statutory employee profit sharing (PTU)-
PTU is recorded in the results of the year in which it is incurred and is presented in other operating expenses 
and supplies line in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016 PTU is determined based on taxable income, according to Section I of 
Article 9 of Income Tax Law on January 1, 2014.
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(v)	 Share-based payment-
The Company has established a share-based payment program based on its capital stock for certain em-
ployees, recognizing an operating expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and an 
increase in the stockholders´ equity, during the vesting period, at fair value of the equity instruments provided. 

According to the characteristics of this plan, shares net of tax withholding will be given to those officers who 
meet the vesting criterion of staying uninterruptedly in the Company during the vesting dates of the plan, as 
mentioned in note 18(b).

(n)	 Provisions-
A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle that 
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at pre-tax rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is 
recognized as finance cost.

(o)	 Income taxes-
Income taxes include current tax and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in income, except when 
it relates to a business combination or items recognized directly in equity, in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax is recognized in the results of the year in which it is incurred. Income in tax is calculated according 
to legal and tax requirements in Mexico, applying the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, 
and any adjustment to the tax charged in respect of prior years.

Deferred income tax is recorded according to the asset and liability method, which compares the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes, thus recognizing deferred 
taxes (assets and liabilities) for the temporary differences between these values. Deferred taxes are not recognized for 
the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and differences relating to investments in sub-
sidiaries to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it 
is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future. In addition, deferred taxes are not recognized for taxable 
temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred taxes are measured at the tax rates that 
are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforce-
able right to offset current tax assets and liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on 
the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net 
basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for tax loss carryforwards, tax credits and deductible temporary differences in as 
much as it is likely that the future taxable income will be available against which they can be used. The carrying amount 
of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

(p)	 Capital stock-

(i)	 Common stock
Common stock is classified within stockholders´ equity. Incremental costs that are directly attributable to 
the issue of common stock and stock options are recognized as a deduction in stockholders´ equity, net of 
tax effects.

(ii)	 Repurchase of shares
When the capital stock recognized as stockholders´ equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration 
paid, including the directly attributable costs, net of tax effect, is recorded as a reduction in the stockhold-
ers´ equity. The repurchased shares are classified as treasury shares and are presented as a deduction of 
the stockholders´ equity. When the treasury shares are subsequently sold or reissued, the amount received 
is recognized as an increase in the stockholders´ equity, and the surplus or deficit resulting from the trans-
action is transferred to retained earnings.

(q)	 Revenue-
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of estimated customer returns, 
rebates and other similar discounts.

The Company provides services to the general public. The Company recognizes revenue from sales of memberships 
acquired by the club members to be able to use the facilities, from monthly maintenance fees, from the sale of some 
products and other services to the members, as well as the sponsorships and other commercial services to conces-
sion holders.

Revenue is recognized in consolidated statements of comprehensive income when the amount of revenue can be mea-
sured reliably, when: (i) the revenue is measured, (ii) the risks and rewards of products are transferred to the customer, 
(iii) is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company, and (iv) the costs 
incurred or to be incurred in respect to the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from sales of memberships is recognized at the time of sale, which generally coincides with the collection, 
considering that membership only makes the user to be a member of the club, and all the other services, products, and 
monthly maintenance fees are separately recorded, as a service is earned. 

The deferred income or prepaid collections for maintenance fee are recognized as deferred income in the consoli-
dated statement of financial position and recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the 
year as earned.

The prepaid collections for maintenance fees and memberships of clubs under construction (presales) are recognized 
as deferred income in the consolidated statement of financial position. 

Revenues for memberships are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the club is 
opened and revenues for maintenance fees are recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for 
the year as earned or when the club is opened.

Revenue from trading sponsorships are recognized as deferred income at the moment of executing contracts, and 
recognized in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income as earned.

(r)	 Finance income and finance costs-
Finance income including interest income for investments, is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits 
will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time 
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset´s net 
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings. Borrowing costs are not directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. Bor-
rowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that 
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those 
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Exchange income and exchange losses are reported on a net basis in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

(s)	 Earnings per share-
The Company presents information on the basic earnings per share (EPS) for their common stock. The basic EPS are 
computed by dividing the profit or loss attributable to the holders of the Company´s common shares by the weighted 
average number of common shares outstanding during the period, adjusted for the own shares held (note 19).
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(t)	 Related-party transactions and balances-

Key management personnel compensation
Key management personnel compensation paid by the Company to the main directors and officers for the 
corporate year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, was approximately $24,301 and $26,542, respectively. 
This amount includes the remunerations determined at the Company´s General Stockholders´ Meeting for the 
performance of their duties during such year, as well as wages and salaries to its employees. 

The Company reviews on a continuous basis the salaries and bonuses in order to offer its employees competi-
tive compensation conditions.

(u)	 Recently issued financial reporting standards-

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial as-
sets. IFRS 9 was subsequently amended in October 2010 to include requirements for the classification and measurement 
of financial liabilities and for derecognition and in November 2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge 
accounting. Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements for 
financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and measurement requirements by introducing a ̀fair 
value through other comprehensive income´ (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of IFRS 9:
•	 All recognized financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are required to be 

subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within 
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash 
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured 
at amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a 
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 
assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pay-
ments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured at FVTOCI. All 
other debt investments and equity investments are measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent ac-
counting periods. In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent 
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading nor contingent consideration 
recognized by an acquirer in a business combination) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend 
income generally recognized in profit or loss.

•	 With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as of fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes 
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the 
effects of changes in the liability´s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an 
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability´s credit risk 
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair 
value of the financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

•	 In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed 
to an incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account 
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect 
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to 
have occurred before credit losses are recognized.

•	 The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms 
currently available in IAS 39. Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of trans-
actions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that qualify for 
hedging instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge 
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with the principle of 
an ̀economic relationship .́ Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. 
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity´s risk management activities have also been introduced.

The management of the Entity do not anticipate that the application of the IFRS 9 hedge accounting requirements will 
have a material impact on the Entity´s consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
In May 2014, it was issued of IFRS 15, establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for reve-
nue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 
18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or ser-
vices to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for 
those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition: 

Step 1:	 Identify the contract(s) with a customer,
Step 2:	 Identify the performance obligations in the contract,
Step 3:	 Determine the transaction price,
Step 4:	 Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract,
Step 5:	 Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognizes revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ̀control´ of 
the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more pre-
scriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are 
required by IFRS 15. 

In April 2016, the IASB issued Clarifications to IFRS 15 in relation to the identification of performance obligations, principal 
versus agent considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

Apart from providing more extensive disclosures on the Entity´s revenue transactions, the directors do not 
anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 will have a significant impact on the financial position and/or financial 
performance of the Entity.

IFRS 16, Leases 
IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for 
both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 was issued in January 2017 and will supersede the current lease guidance including IAS 
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes effective. 

IFRS 16 distinguishes leases and service contracts on the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a custom-
er. “Distinctions of operating leases (off balance sheet) and finance leases (on balance sheet) are removed for lessee 
accounting and is replaced by a model where a right-of –use asset and a corresponding liability have to recognized for 
all leases by lessees (i.e. all on balance sheet) except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease 
liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payment as well as the impact of lease modifications, 
among the others. Furthermore, the classification of cash flows will also affected as operating lease payments under 
IAS 17 are presented as operating cash flows, whereas under the IFRS 16 model, the lease payments will be split into a 
principal and interest portion which will be presented as financing and operating cash flows respectively.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17, and 
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.
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However, a lessee may elect to account for lease payments as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term 
for leases with a lease term of 12 months or less and containing no purchase options (this election is made by class of 
underlying asset); and leases where the underlying asset has a low value when new, such as personal computers or 
small items of office furniture (this election can be made on a lease-by-lease basis).

IFRS 16 establishes different transitional provisions, including retrospective application or the modified retrospective appli-
cation where the comparative period is not restated.

Apart from providing more extensive disclosures on the Entity´s leases, the management is in the process of determining 
the potential impacts that will derive from the adoption of this standard in its consolidated financial statements and/or 
financial performance of the Entity.

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

The amendments clarify the following:

1.	 In estimating the fair value of a cash-settled share-based payment, the accounting for the effects of 
vesting and non-vesting conditions should follow the same approach as for equity-settled share-based 
payments. 

2.	 Where tax law or regulation requires an entity to withhold a specified number of equity instruments equal 
to the monetary value of the employee´s tax obligation to meet the employee´s tax liability which is then 
remitted to the tax authority, i.e. the share-based payment arrangement has a ̀net settlement feature,́ 
such an arrangement should be classified as equity-settled in its entirety, provided that the share-based 
payment would have been classified as equity-settled had it not included the net settlement feature.

3.	 A modification of a share-based payment that changes the transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled 
should be accounted for as follows:

(i)	 The original liability is derecognized;
(ii)	 The equity-settled share-based payment is recognized at the modification date fair value of the equi-

ty instrument granted to the extent that services have been rendered up to the modification date; and
(iii)	 Any difference between the carrying amount of the liability at the modification date and the amount 

recognized in equity should be recognized in profit or loss immediately.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier application 
permitted. Specific transition provisions apply. The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of 
the amendments in the future will have a significant impact on the Company´s consolidated financial statements as the 
Company does not have any cash-settled share-based payment arrangements or any withholding tax arrangements 
with tax authorities in relation to share-based payments.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle
The Annual Improvements include amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 which are not yet mandatorily effective for the 
Entity. The package also includes amendments to IFRS 12 which is mandatorily effective for the Entity in the current year 
- see note 2.1 for details of application.

The amendments to IAS 28 clarify that the option for a venture capital organization and other similar entities to measure 
investments in associates and joint ventures at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) is available separately for each 
associate or joint venture, and that election should be made at initial recognition of the associate or joint venture. In 
respect of the option for an entity that is not an investment entity (IE) to retain the fair value measurement applied by its 
associates and joint ventures that are IEs when applying the equity method, the amendments make a similar clarifica-
tion that this choice is available for each IE associate or IE joint venture. The amendments apply retrospectively with 
earlier application permitted.

Both the amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The di-
rectors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will have any impact on 
the Entity consolidated financial statements as the Company is neither a first-time adopter of IFRS nor a venture capital 
organization. Furthermore, the Company does not have any associate or joint venture that is an investment entity.

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 
IFRIC 22 addresses how to determine the ̀date of transaction´ for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to 
use on initial recognition of an asset, expense or income, when consideration for that item has been paid or received 
in advance in a foreign currency which resulted in the recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability 
(e.g. a non-refundable deposit or deferred revenue). 

The Interpretation specifies that the date of transaction is the date on which the entity initially recognizes the 
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration. If there 
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Interpretation requires an entity to determine the date of transac-
tion for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

The Interpretation is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier application permit-
ted. Entities can apply the Interpretation either retrospectively or prospectively. Specific transition provisions apply to 
prospective application.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the amendments in the future will have an impact 
on the consolidated financial statements. This is because the Company already accounts for transactions involving the 
payment or receipt of advance consideration in a foreign currency in a way that is consistent with the amendments.

(5) Fair values determination-

Several accounting policies and disclosures of the Company require the determination of fair value, for both financial 
and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair value has been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes 
based on the following methods:

(a)	 Temporary investments
The fair value of the investment securities is determined considering the purchase quotation as of the end on 
the reporting date; all the market values are level 1 according to the terminology of IFRS 7 “Financial instruments: 
Disclosures”.

(b)	 Trade receivables
The fair values of trade and other receivables are estimated at the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the 
market rate of interest at the measurement date. Short-term receivables are measured at the original invoice amount, 
considering that such amount does not differ significantly from its fair value.

(c)	 Non-derivative financial liabilities
The fair value determination of the financial assets and liabilities for which there are not observable market prices, 
requires the use of valuation methodologies, as described in note 2(d).

Valuation methodologies include present value models and estimated discounted cash flows, and comparison to similar 
instruments for which there are observable market prices and other valuation methods. 

•	 The Company´s stock market level in the Mexican Stock Exchange Market.
•	 Debt instruments listed in the Mexican Stock Exchange Market, which issuers are similar to the Company 

as for the stock market level of the shares issued.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the valuation made in accordance with level 2, there has not been a significant impact on 
the fair value measurements of the Company´s financial liabilities. 

(d)	 Share-based payment arrangements
The fair value for the shares assigned in the stock compensation plan for officers is equal to the average price of the 
share as of the assignment date. 

When applicable, further information is disclosed regarding the assumptions made in determining the specific reason-
able values of such asset or liability.
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(e)	 Derivate financial instruments
The Company has a derivative financial instrument, and through it performs an economic hedge the financial liability 
that the Company has as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, which is denominated in Mexican pesos and pays interest 
based on the Interbank Interest Rate (TIIE). This instrument exchanges the profile TIIE liability for a fixed rate, however, 
there is an upper limit or “ceiling” of 5% and 6.5% on the TIIE rate for this coverage; the Company is not covered above 
this level. These transactions are referred to as "Bonus Swaps".

Therefore, the Company has modeled this instrument through two instruments base, an interest rate swap and an 
option on interest rates.

The following analysis shows the techniques and methodologies used in estimating the fair value of financial instruments 
categorized in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE

TYPE VALUATION TECHNIQUE
SIGNIFICANT 

UNOBSERVABLE 
INPUTS

Interest rate swaps
Forward interest rate and estimated 
present value of cash flows expected is 
obtained 

Not applicable

Options on interest rates
With inputs market forward interest rate is 
estimated and the Black & Scholes model 
is used to estimate the market value

Not applicable

Accounting classifications and fair value

The following analysis shows the carrying value and fair value of financial assets and liabilities, including the hierarchy 
level to which they belong. Information of the fair value of the non-financial asset or liability not measured at fair value 
is not included if the book value and fair value are reasonably close, particularly for the category of “cash and cash 
equivalents”.

BOOK VALUE FAIR VALUE

NOTE
AT FAIR 
VALUE

ACCOUNTSS 
RECEIVABLE 

AND PAYABLE

OTHER
FINANCIAL 
LIABILITIES TOTAL LEVEL 1 LEVEL 2 LEVEL 3 TOTAL

Financial 
assets
(liabilities) 
measured 
at fair 
value

Interest rate 
swaps with 
Cap on TIIE 
rate as of 
December 31:

2017 14 1,214 - - 1,214 - 1,214 - 1,214

2016 14 2,082 - -  2,082 - 2,082 - 2,082

The valuation is performed by the Company in conjunction with an independent third party, to whom is provided 
with the mark to market determined by the financial institution that has the counterparty. The independent third par-
ty can present a prospective analysis of the effectiveness of the hedge in the event that it is intended to designate 
the operations for this purpose. The advisors employ commonly used methods to determine the effectiveness of 
quarterly coverage.

(6) Financial risk management-

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

•	 Credit risk
•	 Liquidity risk
•	 Market risk
•	 Exchange risk
•	 Interest risk
•	 Operational risk

The Company´s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company´s risk 
management framework.

The Company´s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, 
to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and 
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company´s activities. The Company, 
through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control 
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

(a)	 Credit risk-
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a club member or counterparty to a financial instrument fails 
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises mainly from the Company´s account receivables, and cash and cash 
equivalents.

(i)	 Accounts receivable
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the balance of each financial asset mainly in 
accounts receivable. The total of these accounts are mainly diluted among different debtors, users and 
concessionaires, which do not represent an individual risk concentration. The Company periodically evalu-
ates the financial conditions of its debtors. The Company does not believe that there is a significant risk of 
loss due to a concentration of credit in its customer base, because the services provided by the Company 
are mainly paid in cash, it also considers that its potential credit risk is adequately covered by its reserve 
of doubtful accounts that represents its estimate of losses incurred due to impairment with respect to 
accounts receivable and accounts receivable due are reserved.

(ii)	 Cash and cash equivalents 
The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by investing only in liquid securities, and counterparties are 
banks with high credit ratings assigned by rating agencies. Management continuously monitors credit rat-
ings and since the Company has only invested in highly rated securities, management does not anticipate 
any counterparty default.

(iii)	 Derivative financial instruments
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum exposure to credit risk. Because the 
Company has as of December 31, 2017 a liability for derivative financial instruments, the Company has no 
exposure to credit risk on these instruments.

Derivative financial instruments have been agreed by the Company with a bank as counterparty, and this 
institution is rated between the range AA- and AAA according to the rating agency Standard & Poors.

(b)	 Liquidity risk-
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its finan-
cial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company´s approach to managing 
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, 
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Com-
pany´s reputation.
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Normally, the Company makes sure that it has sufficient cash available to cover the projected operating expenses, 
maintaining cash allowances, disposing of credit lines available, continuously monitoring the projected and real cash 
flows, reconciling the maturity profiles of the financial assets and liabilities. 

The table below details the Company´s remaining contractual maturities for its non-derivative financial assets and liabili-
ties with reimbursement periods agreed:

DECEMBER 31,

2017 2016

Financial liabilities
Trade accounts payable $ 100,250 70,853

Documents payable to banks in 1 year 104,246 231,568

Documents payable to banks from 2 to 3 years 218,542 166,121

Documents payable to banks in more than 3 years 210,000 16,666

Financial lease in 1 year 3,054 3,634

Financial lease from 2 to 3 years 7,881 10,548

Financial lease in more than 3 years  11,555  12,097

Total, carried forward 655,528 511,487

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 68,792 134,269

Accounts receivable, net  79,808  23,986

Total 148,600 158,255

Net $ (506,928) (353,232)

The following are the remaining contractual cash flows of financial liabilities as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, including 
estimated interest and excluding the impact of netting agreements payments.

BOOK 
VALUE 

CONTRACTUAL 
FLOWS 6 MONTHS

6-12 
MONTHS 1-2 YEARS 2-5 YEARS

Derivative financial 
assets (liabilities)

Interest rate swaps 
with Cap TIIE rate at 
December 31:

2017 1,214 1,397 563 436 386 12

2016 2,082 2,591 755 653 840 343

The inflow/(outflow) disclosed in the above table represent the expected cash flows related undiscounted financial liabil-
ities arising from derivatives held for risk management purposes and that the Company does not intend to close before 
the contractual maturity. The disclosure shows net cash flow amounts for derivatives that are settled in cash inflows and 
cash gross output for derivatives that are settled simultaneously in gross cash.

(c)	 Market risk-
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will 
affect the Company´s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk manage-
ment is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

The Company has derivative financial liabilities and financial obligations to manage market risk. These operations are 
carried out according to the policies established by the Management.

(d)	 Currency risk-
The Company is exposed to an exchange risk; it ensures that its net exposure is maintained at acceptable by purchas-
ing and selling US dollars at spot exchange rate as required for meeting short-term unforeseen events. The Company 
does not use any hedging instrument. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, were as follows:

THOUSANDS OF U. S. DOLLARS
	 AS DECEMBER 31,

2017 2016

Assets 233 39

Liabilities (367) (28)

Net (short) long monetary position (134) 11

The exchange rate of Mexican peso/U.S. dollar, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, was $19.66 and $20.66 respectively. 
At February 20, 2018, the exchange rate of Mexican peso/U.S. dollar was $18.54.

(e)	 Interest rate risk-
The Company´s exposures to interest rate risks are primarily in the interest paid for the credit line with Santander Serfín, 
S. A., Institución de Banca Múltiple (Santander) at an Inter-bank Interest Rate of Equilibrium (TIIE) plus three point five 
(3.5) and two point five (2.3) percentage points and with HSBC Mexico, S.A. at TIIE plus three percentage points (3.0). 
The sensitivity analysis determined by the Company is conducted in accordance with exposure to the interest rates of 
its total unhedged financial debt supported on variable rates; an analysis is conducted assuming that the amount of the 
outstanding liability at the end of the reporting period has been the outstanding liability for the entire year. The Compa-
ny internally informs to the Board of Directors about the interest rate risk.

The Company has contracted this derivative instrument with the purpose of performing an economic hedge, due to the 
risk associated with the interest rate of the liabilities it maintains with its counterpart Santander. However this instrument 
has not been formally designated as hedging by the Company, situation that can be evaluated in the short term.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The interest rate profile of the financial instruments of the Company that accrues interest is defined as follows:

NOMINAL AMOUNT

THOUSANDS OF PESOS 2017 2016

Variable rate instruments

Financial liabilities $ (152,721) (172,121)

Effect of interest rate swap with Cap in TIIE  1,214  2,082

$ (151,507) (170,039)

During 2017, there were no maturities in derivative transactions. Existing swap transactions have not included margin calls. 
As of December 31, 2017, the Company has not failed to comply with the obligations related to this type of transaction.
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(f)	 Sensitivity analysis of cash flow for instruments of variable rate
The Company´s exposures to interest rate risk are mainly in TIIE interest rates on bank loans, and in derivate financial 
instruments as of December 31, 2017. Sensitivity analysis determined by the Company is prepared based on exposure to 
interest rates for its total debt at variable rates, and the derivative financial instrument that has contracted to cover that 
debt. The Company prepares an analysis assuming that the liability at the end of reporting period has been the liability 
for the year.

If TIIE interest rates had had a change of 100 and 200 basis points (bp), up and down each reporting period, and all 
other variables held constant, current earnings would have increased (decreased) in the amounts shown below:

100 BP 200 BP

DECEMBER 31, 2017 INCREASE DECREASE INCREASE DECREASE

Interest rate swap with Cap in TIIE 17 (62) 19 (337)

17 (62) 19 (337)

DECEMBER 31, 2016

Interest rate swap with Cap in TIIE 224 (522) 304 (1,569)

224 (522) 304 (1,569)

(g)	 Operational risk-
The operational risk is the direct or indirect loss derived from different reasons relating to the Company´s processes, per-
sonnel, technology and infrastructure, as well as from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks, such 
as those deriving from legal and regulatory requirements, and generally accepted corporate governance standards. The 
operational risk arises from the Company´s operations. 

The Company´s policy is to manage the operational risk in order to balance the prevention of financial losses and damage 
to its reputation with the overall effectiveness of costs while avoiding control procedures that limit initiative and creativity.

The responsibility for the development and implementation of controls for hedging operational risks lies with senior 
management of each business unit. This responsibility is focused on developing policies for managing the Company´s 
operational risk, in the following areas:

•	 Proper segregation of duties, including the independent authorization of transactions;
•	 Transaction reconciliation and monitoring;
•	 Compliance with the regulatory and legal requirements;
•	 Controls and procedures documentation;
•	 Periodic evaluation of operational risks being faced, the appropriateness of the controls and procedures to 

tackle identified risks;
•	 Reporting requirements for operational losses and corrective measurements proposed;
•	 Development of contingency plans;
•	 Training and professional development;
•	 Ethics and business standards;
•	 Risk mitigation, including the procurement of insurance as required.

Compliance with the Company´s policies is monitored by the senior management.

(h)	 Equity risk management-
The Company´s Board of Directors policy is to maintain a strong capital base in order to maintain the confidence of 
investors, creditors, and market participants on the Company and sustain the future development of the business. 

The Board of Director´s objective is that the Company´s managers, assistant managing directors and managing directors 
hold a percentage of the Company´s common stock.

Periodically, the Company purchases its own shares in the market; the moment of such purchases depends on the 
market prices. Some shares are devoted to the Company´s share-based payment program.

The Executive Committee takes decisions based on the evaluation of every specific transaction. During the period, there 
were no changes with regard to the Company´s policies in the capital management.

The Company is obligated to maintain the minimum consolidated stockholders' equity of $802,000 and $889,664, as 
part of its obligations with Santander and HSBC, if it is not complied with, the Bank is entitled to terminate in advance 
the agreements that cover the lines of credit.

The Board of Directors seeks maintaining the balance between the highest returns that could be reached with higher 
levels of loans and the advantages and security provided by a strong capital position. 

The Company´s Management reviews periodically the financial lease debt and bank loans with interest cost and its 
relation with the EBITDA (earnings before income tax plus depreciation and amortization, interest and exchange rate 
fluctuations), by submitting their financial projections, as part of the business plan, to the Company´s Board of Directors 
and stockholders. 

The debt index is the relation with the EBITDA and the net debt with interest cost, and the interest hedge index is the 
relation with interest expense and the EBITDA. The net debt index as of the end of the reporting period is as follows: 

2017 2016

Net debt with interest cost $ 486,486 306,365

Net income $ 52,747 29,723

Depreciation and amortization 180,996 158,665

Finance cost, net 50,196 30,032

Income taxes  8,818  9,806

EBITDA 292,757 228,226

Debt index $ 1.66 1.34

EBITDA $ 292,757 228,226

Interest expense 56,261 34,416

Interest hedge index 5.20 6.63

(i)	 Fair values versus carrying amounts
The Company estimates, given the nature of its financial assets and liabilities that the carrying amounts of financial 
assets and liabilities, do not differ significantly from their fair values.
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(7) Cash and cash equivalents-

2017 2016

Cash $ 68,583 48,126

Temporary investments 209 86,143

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows $ 68,792 134,269

(8) Accounts receivable-

2017 2016

Mainly members $ 78,222 22,183

Other accounts receivables 4,418 3,803

82,640 25,986

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 2,832 2,000

$ 79,808 23,986

(9) Leasehold improvements, construction in progress, furniture 
 and equipment- 

The movement of leasehold improvements, construction in progress, furniture and equipment is a follow:

BALANCES 
AT 

DECEMBER 
31, 2016 ADDITIONS

DISPOSALS/
DEPRECIATION TRANSFERS

BALANCES 
AT

DECEMBER 
31,2017

Investment:

Leasehold improvements 1,252,282 - - 248,170 1,500,452

Gym equipment 314,782 81,939 8,520 - 388,201

Audio and video equipment 23,834 4,345 209 - 27,970

Club furniture and equipment 53,179 9,076 152 - 62,103

Computer equipment 44,304 13,837 719 - 57,422

Transportation equipment 664 - 52 - 612

Machinery 81,496 4,332 276 - 85,552

Office furniture and equipment 2,994 - 68 - 2,926

Construction in progress 22,575 242,660 - (248,170) 17,065

Investment total 1,796,110 356,189 9,996 - 2,142,303

Depreciation:

Leasehold improvements 305,271 102,763 - - 408,034

Gym equipment 159,654 43,240 7,791 - 195,103

Audio and video equipment 18,364 4,768 126 - 23,006

Club furniture and equipment 35,516 7,239 81 - 42,674

Computer equipment 35,874 7,680 342 - 43,212

Transportation equipment 613 25 26 - 612

Machinery 32,195 7,994 128 - 40,061

Office furniture and equipment 2,553 191  59 -  2,685

Accumulated depreciation 590,040 173,900 8,553 -  755,387

Net investment 1,206,070 182,289 1,443 - 1,386,916

Advance to suppliers  222 7,138 - (222)  7,138

$ 1,206,292 1,394,054

The Company is in process of constructing two new clubs; thus, the estimate cash disbursement necessary to 
complete such clubs and be under operating conditions is $61,094. As of December 31, 2017, construction in progress 
amounted to $17,065.
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BALANCES 
AT 

DECEMBER 
31, 2015 ADDITIONS

DISPOSALS/
DEPRECIATION TRANSFERS

BALANCES 
AT 

DECEMBER 
31, 2016

Investment:

Leasehold improvements $ 1,102,822 - - 149,460 1,252,282

Gym equipment 278,051 42,943 6,212 - 314,782

Audio and video equipment 20,528 3,326 20 - 23,834

Club furniture and equipment 50,705 4,066 1,592 - 53,179

Computer equipment 38,480 6,088 264 - 44,304

Transportation equipment 664 - - - 664

Machinery 76,718 4,175 11 614 81,496

Office furniture and equipment 2,994 - - - 2,994

Construction in progress 34,160 140,755  2,266 (150,074) 22,575

Investment total 1,605,122 201,353 10,365 - 1,796,110

Depreciation:

Leasehold improvements 221,772 83,652 153 - 305,271

Gym equipment 122,712 41,307 4,365 - 159,654

Audio and video equipment 12,971 5,393 - - 18,364

Club furniture and equipment 27,336 8,180 - - 35,516

Computer equipment 28,842 7,292 260 - 35,874

Transportation equipment 460 153 - - 613

Machinery 24,417 8,225 447 - 32,195

Office furniture and equipment  2,332 221 - -  2,553

Accumulated depreciation 440,842 154,423 5,225 - 590,040

Net investment $ 1,164,280 46,930 5,140 - 1,206,070

Advance to suppliers - 222 - -  222

$ 1,164,280 $ 1,206,292

(10) Intangible assets-

The rollforward of intangible assets is shown below:

BALANCES 
AT 

DECEMBER 
31, 2016 ADDITIONS

DISPOSALS/
DEPRECIATION TRANSFERS

BALANCES 
AT 

DECEMBER 
31, 2017

Investment:

Trademarks $ 27,795 - - - 27,795

Rights 6,819 250 - - 7,069

Computer software 32,020 8,531 - - 40,551

Development costs - 3,550 - - 3,550

Other intangibles - 12,121 - - 12,121

Investment total 66,634 24,452 - - 91,086

Amortization:

Trademarks 27,795 - - - 27,795

Rights 860 934 - - 1,794

Computer software 24,923  4,014 - - 28,937

Other intangibles - 2,146 - -  2,146

Accumulated amortization 53,578 7,094 - - 60,672

Net investment $ 13,056 17,358 - - 30,414

BALANCES 
AT 

DECEMBER 
31, 2015 ADDITIONS

DISPOSALS/
DEPRECIATION TRANSFERS

BALANCES 
AT 

DECEMBER 
31, 2016

Investment:

Trademarks $ 27,795 - - - 27,795

Rights 2,282 4,537 - - 6,819

Computer software 28,121 3,899 - - 32,020

Investment total 58,198 8,436 - - 66,634

Amortization:

Trademarks 27,795 - - - 27,795

Rights 273 587 - - 860

Computer software 21,266 3,657 - - 24,923

Accumulated amortization 49,334 4,244 - - 53,578

Net investment $ 8,864 4,192 - - 13,056
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Impairment tests for cash-generating units that contain goodwill

For purposes of impairment tests, goodwill is assigned to the Company´s asset units per club, which represent the Com-
pany´s lowest level to which goodwill is monitored for management´s internal purposes.

Both in 2017 and 2016, the cash flows were projected over the basis of past experiences, the real operating results and 
the business plan of each business unit for ten years. The cash flows for an additional period of 10 years were extrap-
olated using a constant growth rate in the order of 2.5% for 2017 and 2016. The annual discount rate used in these 
projections was 13%.

(11) Short-and long-term loans-

This disclosure provides information on the contractual terms for the Company´s loans that bear interest, which is mea-
sured at amortized cost. 

During 2017, the Company, through its subsidiary Operadora y Administradora SW, S.A. de C.V., has contracted: 
a) simple credit for $350,000 with HSBC payable in 5 years with a grace period of 18 months in amortization 
capital, which shall bear interest at TIIE plus 3.0 percentage points, b) an unsecured loan for $40,000 with HSBC, 
which was paid in December 2017 and c) a credit line with Santander for $20,000, paid in December as well.

The disposals made in the credit line as of December 31, 2017 and the respective interest rate are detailed on the 
next page.

DISPOSAL
DATE 

INTEREST 
RATE

DUE 
DATE

AMOUNT
DISPOSED PAID

SHORT 
TERM

LONG
TERM

23/08/2012 TIIE + 3.50% 23/08/2017 $ 65,800 65,800 - -

23/10/2012 TIIE + 3.50% 23/10/2017 24,900 - -

23/11/2012 TIIE + 3.50% 23/11/2017 31,790 31,790 - -

23/08/2013 TIIE + 3.50% 23/08/2018 59,774 56,514 3,260 -

23/09/2013 TIIE + 3.50% 23/08/2018 17,736 16,751 985 -

23/06/2014 TIIE + 3.50% 23/06/2019 78,315 48,947 19,580 9,788

28/09/2014 TIIE + 3.50% 28/06/2019 35,095 21,935 8,774 4,386

23/12/2014 TIIE + 3.50% 23/12/2019 25,000 15,625 6,250 3,125

23/04/2015 TIIE + 3.50% 23/12/2019 26,590 16,618 6,647 3,325

22/05/2015 TIIE + 3.50% 13/04/2020 25,000 10,417 6,250 8,333

23/06/2015 TIIE + 3.50% 13/04/2020 35,000 14,583 8,750 11,667

23/07/2015 TIIE + 3.50% 13/04/2020 35,000 14,583 8,750 11,667

25/08/2015 TIIE + 3.50% 13/04/2020 35,000 14,583 8,750 11,667

25/09/2015 TIIE + 3.50% 13/04/2020 35,000 14,583 8,750 11,667

25/11/2015 TIIE + 3.50% 13/04/2020 35,000 14,583 8,750 11,667

11/07/2016 TIIE + 3.00% 01/01/2017 25,000 25,000 - -

21/07/2016 TIIE + 4.00% 18/07/2017 25,000 25,000 - -

21/09/2016 TIIE + 3.50% 21/01/2017 40,000 40,000 - -

10/10/2016 TIIE + 3.50% 21/02/2017 15,000 15,000 - -

25/10/2016 TIIE + 3.50% 21/02/2017 10,000 10,000 - -

24/03/2017 TIIE + 3.00% 15/03/2022 150,000 - 3,750 146,250

24/04/2017 TIIE + 3.00% 15/03/2022 50,000 - 1,250 48,750

24/05/2017 TIIE + 3.00% 15/03/2022 50,000 - 1,250 48,750

23/06/2017 TIIE + 3.00% 15/03/2022 50,000 - 1,250 48,750

24/07/2017 TIIE + 3.00% 15/03/2022 50,000  1,250  48,750

16/10/2017 TIIE + 2.75% 31/12/2017 30,000 30,000 - -

30/10/2017 TIIE + 2.75% 31/12/2017 10,000 10,000 - -

$ 1,070,000 537,212 104,246 428,542

On September 20, 2016 the Company, through its subsidiary Operadora y Administradora SW, S.A. de C.V., obtained 
a new line of credit of up to $70,000 with Arrendadora Actinver, S.A. de C.V., which shall bear interest at TIIE plus 3.5 
percentage points, payable at maturity on January 21, and February 21, 2017.

During July 2016, the Company, through its subsidiary Operadora y Administradora SW, S.A. de C.V., obtained two ad-
ditional borrowings of $25,000 each with Santander, which shall bear interest at TIIE plus 3.0 percentage points and TIIE 
plus 4.0 percentage points, payable at maturity in 180 days and 12 months, respectively.

The disposals made in the credit line as of December 31, 2016 and the respective interest rate are detailed as follows:

DISPOSAL
DATE 

INTEREST 
RATE

DUE 
DATE

AMOUNT
DISPOSED PAID

SHORT 
TERM

LONG
TERM

23/08/2012 TIIE + 3.50% 23/08/2017 $ 65,800 57,027 8,773 -

23/10/2012 TIIE + 3.50% 23/10/2017 24,900 20,750 4,150 -

23/11/2012 TIIE + 3.50% 23/11/2017 31,790 25,962 5,828 -

23/08/2013 TIIE + 3.50% 23/08/2018 59,774 43,472 13,043 3,259

23/09/2013 TIIE + 3.50% 23/08/2018 17,736 12,810 3,941 985

23/06/2014 TIIE + 3.50% 23/06/2019 78,315 29,368 19,579 29,368

28/09/2014 TIIE + 3.50% 28/06/2019 35,095 13,160 8,774 13,161

23/12/2014 TIIE + 3.50% 23/12/2019 25,000 9,375 6,250 9,375

23/04/2015 TIIE + 3.50% 23/12/2019 26,590 9,972 6,647 9,971

22/05/2015 TIIE + 3.50% 13/04/2020 25,000 4,167 6,250 14,583

23/06/2015 TIIE + 3.50% 13/04/2020 35,000 5,833 8,750 20,417

23/07/2015 TIIE + 3.50% 13/04/2020 35,000 5,833 8,750 20,417

25/08/2015 TIIE + 3.50% 13/04/2020 35,000 5,833 8,750 20,417

25/09/2015 TIIE + 3.50% 13/04/2020 35,000 5,833 8,750 20,417

25/11/2015 TIIE + 3.50% 13/04/2020 35,000 5,833 8,750 20,417

11/07/2016 TIIE + 3.00% 01/01/2017 25,000 - 25,000 -

21/07/2016 TIIE + 4.00% 18/07/2017 25,000 10,417 14,583 -

21/09/2016 TIIE + 3.50% 21/01/2017 40,000 - 40,000 -

10/10/2016 TIIE + 3.50% 21/02/2017 15,000 - 15,000 -

25/10/2016 TIIE + 3.50% 21/02/2017 10,000 - 10,000 -

$ 680,000 265,645 231,568 182,787

Bank loans establish certain affirmative and negative covenants, the most significant of which refer to limitations on 
dividend payments and the compliance with certain financial ratios determined in accordance with the consolidated 
figures of Grupo Sports World, S. A. B. de C. V. and subsidiaries, as well as not incurring direct or contingent liabilities, or 
any other contractual debts. 

As of December 31, 2017 such obligations were complied, except for the financial liquidity index, however, the Administra-
tion has obtained a waiver by the Bank.

The interest expense, for years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, was $53,286 and $30,444, respectively.

(12) Financial leases-

The Company has contracted capital lease liabilities covering certain leasehold improvements leased for two sport 
clubs, which mature in 15 years, from 2008 and up to 2023. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, leasehold improve-
ments acquired through capital lease are as shown below:
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2017 2016

Leasehold improvements $ 42,281 42,281

Less accumulated amortization (25,994) (23,038)

$ 16,287 19,243

Interest expense on capital leases, for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, was $2,975 and $3,278, 
respectively.

The financial lease obligations are payable as described below: 

TOTAL AMOUNT 
OF THE MINIMUM 

FUTURE LEASE 
PAYMENTS (INTEREST)

PRESENT VALUE 
OF THE MINIMUM 
LEASE PAYMENTS

December 31, 2017:

Less than one year $ 5,518 2,464 3,054

From two to three years 11,596 3,715 7,881

More than three years 13,392  1,837 11,555

$ 30,506 8,016 22,490

December 31, 2016:

Less than one year $ 6,515 2,881 3,634

From two to three years 16,727 6,179 10,548

More than three years 13,392  1,295 12,097

$ 36,634 10,355 26,279

(13) Accounts payable-
 
The trade accounts payable are analyzed as follows:

2017 2016

Accounts payable to suppliers of leasehold improvements and equipment $ 48,472 33,187

Accounts payable to other suppliers and creditors  51,778 37,666

$ 100,250 70,853

(14) Derivative financial instruments-

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016 the carrying amount and the fair value of financial assets and liabilities, including their 
hierarchy level to which they belong were as follows:

2017 2016

Financial assets measured at fair value
Interest rate swaps with Cap on TIIE rate $ 1,214 2,082

The exposure of the Company to market and liquidity risk in relation to financial liabilities are disclosed in note 6.

(15) Employee benefits-

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, there were short-term direct benefits from accumulating compensated absences 
for vacation aggregating to $6,412 and $4,903, respectively, which are recorded in other payables in the statement of 
financial position.

The cost, obligations and other elements of the seniority premium plans were determined based on computations pre-
pared by independent actuaries at December 31, 2017 and 2016.

The present value of benefit obligations of the plans at December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

2017 2016

Seniority premium $ 2,878 2,225

Other post-retirement plans 9,425 7,018

Net liability recorded $ 12,303 9,243

(a)	 Rollforward in the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO)

SENIORITY PREMIUM
OTHER 

POST-RETIREMENT PLANS
2017 2016 2017 2016

DBO at January 1 $ 2,225 2,080 7,018 6,711

Service and interest cost 760 626 2,309 2,217

Benefits paid by the plan (129) (151) - -

Net actuarial gain and loss 
recognized in OCI 22 (330) 98 (1,910)

DBO as of December 31 $ 2,878 2,225 9,425 7,018

(b)	 Expense recognized in the statement of comprehensive income-

SENIORITY PREMIUM
OTHER 

POST-RETIREMENT PLANS

2017 2016 2017 2016

Service cost $ 593 489 1,756 1,753

Interest cost 167 137 553 464

$ 760 626 2,309 2,217
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(c)	 Net actuarial (gains) and losses recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI)

2017 2016

Amount accumulated as of January 1 $ (3,412) (1,172)

Recognized during the year 120 (2,240)

Amount accumulated $ (3,292) (3,412)

The (income) expense is presented as “personnel services” in the statement of comprehensive income.

(d)	 Actuarial assumptions
The main actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

2017 2016

Discount rate 8.0% 8.0%

Rate of compensation increase 4.5% 4.5%

(16) Operating leases-

The rents for operating leases not subject to cancellation are as follows:

DECEMBER 31, 2017

Less than one year $ 412,973

From two to five years 2,343,924

More than five years 2,754,628

$ 5,511,525

The facilities where the Company has sport clubs are leased to third parties. Such leases are classified as operating 
leases because, independently from the lease term and the amounts fulfilled or committed with the owners of the 
leased property, no transfer of risks and benefits attributable to the ownership thereof is made.

In many leases, a fixed rent is established, fulfilled on a monthly basis and annually updated in accordance with an 
inflation effect rate. In other cases, the amounts payable to the lessor are added with a percentage of sales obtained by 
the Company in the leasehold. Sometimes, staggered rents are agreed, which allow to reduce the monetary flow during 
the first years of use; however, the expense is recognized on a straight line basis. 

The total expense of the rents for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounted to $406,346 and $356,315, 
respectively, and are recorded as operating expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 

Payable rents
In some cases, the leases set forth payment plans that include deferred or free payment periods. The Company 
recognizes the rent expense of such property by estimates, in accordance with the lease.

Differences resulting between the expenses recognized and the amounts paid in accordance with the payment plans 
are recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

(17) Income taxes-

The Company is subject to income tax. The rate of current income is 30% as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and will 
continue for future years.

(a)	 The income tax expense is as follows

2017 2016

Income tax expense:
Current $ 50,765 35,154

Deferred (41,947) (25,348)

$ 8,818 9,806

Income tax expense of the year can be reconciled with the accounting profit, as follows:

2017 2016

% %

Income before income tax $ 61,565 100% 39,529 100%

Income rate 30% 18,470 30% 11,859 30%

Deferred tax effect previously
unrecognized (242) (1%) (1,689) (4%)

Non-deductible expenses 589 1% 1,417 4%

Recognition of income or deductions for 
inflation, net (14,646) (24%) (5,669) (14%)

Non-deductible portion of exempt 
salaries 4,647 8% 3,888 10%

$ 8,818 (14%) 9,806 (25%)

(b)	 Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income

2017 2016

Deferred tax

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation $ 120 (2,240)

Income tax (note 15) (36) 672

$ 84 (1,568)
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(c)	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

2017 2016

Deferred tax assets
Leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment $ 106,896 76,549

Deferred revenues 55,910 48,208

Accruals 20,282 11,131

Allowance for doubtful receivables 849 600

Other long-lived assets 469 392

Total gross deferred tax assets 184,406 136,880

Deferred tax liabilities
Inventories 1,546 2,539

Prepayments 7,794 2,137

Accounts receivable 1,709 830

Total gross deferred tax liabilities 11,049 5,506

Net deferred tax asset $ 173,357 131,374

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, Management considers whether it is more likely than not that some 
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent 
upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deduct-
ible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax 
planning strategies in making this assessment.

Management estimates that the temporary differences for deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2017 will 
be realized as follow:

REALIZATION

AS OF 
DECEMBER 

31, 2017

CURRENT 
FROM 1 
UP TO 

12 MONTHS

NON- THAN 
CURRENT 
MORE 12 
MONTHS

Deferred tax assets

Leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment $ 106,896 - 106,896

Deferred revenues 55,910 55,910 -

Provisions 20,282 17,876 2,406

Allowance for doubtful receivables 849 849 -

Intangibles, and Other long-lived assets 469 - 469

Deferred tax assets 184,406 74,635 109,771

Deferred tax liabilities

Inventories 1,546 1,546 -

Prepayments 7,794 7,794 -

Accounts receivable 1,709  1,709 -

Deferred tax liabilities 11,049 11,049 -

 

Net deferred tax asset $ 173,357 63,586 109,771

(18) Stockholders´ equity and reserves-

(a)	 Capital stock-
As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the subscribed capital stock of the Company is represented by the following number 
of shares:

NUMBER OF SHARES

S Class – Fixed Capital 36,963

S Class – Variable Capital 82,081,986

82,118,949

The holders of common shares are entitled to receive dividends as periodically stated and at one vote per share in the 
Company´s meetings. 

(b)	 Reserve for own shares-

Repurchase shares
At Ordinary and Extraordinary General Stockholders´ Meeting held on April 27, 2017, a resolution was passed to repur-
chase own shares up to a maximum amount of $182,000 during the period 1 of January to 31 of December of 2017. The 
National Banking and Securities Commission in Mexico permits the companies to acquire their own shares at the market, 
charged to retained earnings.

The repurchased shares as of December 31, 2017 amounted to 2,454,247 shares in the amount of $49,396, which repre-
sent 2.99% of the total shares in the Company´s capital stock. The market value of the shares as of December 31, 2017 
is $18.25 Mexican pesos per share. The repurchased own shares available are reclassified to retained earnings. On the 
other hand, 614,485 shares were purchased and sold in the amount of $10,565 which includes a loss of $32.

The repurchased shares as of December 31, 2016 amount to 1,839,762 shares in the amount of $38,831, which represent 
2.24% of the total shares in the Company´s capital stock. The market value of the shares as of December 31, 2016 was 
$16.57 Mexican pesos per share. The repurchased own shares available are reclassified to retained earnings. On the 
other hand, 119,700 shares were purchased in the amount of $2,155.

Below is the detail of the reserve for own shares as of December 31, 2017:

SHARES VALUE

Repurchased shares as of December 31, 2016 1,839,762 $ 38,831

Purchase and (sale), net 614,485 10,565

2,454,247 $ 49,396

Share-based payment
The Company has a trust in order to purchase own shares for the employees´ share-based payment. The start date of 
the plan was April 1, 2012. The main characteristics of the plan include: (i) 3-years validity from the assignment to each 
of the executives, (ii) release of a third party on each anniversary and (iii) not having ceased to render services to the 
Company during that term. This plan allows the Company to incorporate new employees during its term.

The Company´s Technical Committee authorizes and assigns the shares of the plan at least once a year to new em-
ployees who are eligible, according to the policies. The fair value for each share assigned in the stock plan is equal to 
the average price of the share as of the assignment date. 

The trust shares for the share-based payment as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are 315,303 and 331,628 in the amount 
of $4,463 and $4,694, respectively. According to the terms of the plan, the expenses of $1,008 and of $2,780 were rec-
ognized and the net effect of taxes of $606 and $2,070 were credited to the stock repurchase reserve as of December 
31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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Increases (decreases) of the trust shares as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016

Shares as of January 1 331,628 394,801

Shares recognized during the year (16,325) (63,173)

Shares as of December 31 315,303 331,628

Below is the detail of the reserve for own shares as of December 31, 2017:

SHARES VALUE

Shares repurchase 2,454,247 $ 49,396 

Share-based payment 315,303  4,463 

2,769,550 $ 53,859

Cost accrued by shares assigned in 2012 (5,188)

Cost of shares released in 2013 7,263

Cost accrued by shares assigned in 2013 (7,693)

Cost of shares released in 2014 6,340

Cost accrued by shares assigned in 2014 (5,247)

Cost of shares released in 2015 5,636

Cost accrued by shares assigned in 2015 (2,495)

Cost of shares released in 2016 894

Cost accrued by shares assigned in 2016 (2,070)

Cost of shares released in 2017 231

Cost accrued by shares assigned in 2017 (606)

Reserve for own shares $ 50,924

(c)	 Restrictions on stockholders´ equity
Five percent of net income for the year must be appropriated to the statutory reserve, until it reaches one-fifth of capital 
stock. As of December 31, 2017, the statutory reserve amounts to $18,000, and has not reached the required amount.

Stockholder contributions restated as provided for by the tax law, may be refunded to stockholders tax-free, to the 
extent that such contributions equal or exceed stockholders´ equity. 

Retained earnings on which no income tax has been paid, are subject to income taxes in the event of distribution, at the 
rate of 30%, payable by the Company; consequently, the stockholders may only receive 70% of such amounts. 

(19) Earnings per share-

Basic earnings per share calculation as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 was based on the earnings attributable to the 
common stockholders, and in a weighted average of current common shares, as detailed below: 

NUMBER OF 
SHARES

EQUIVALENCE 
FACTOR

WEIGHTED 
AVERAGE OF 

SHARES

December 31, 2017

Current shares on January 1 79,947,559 1.0000 79,947,559

Net sale of shares repurchase (598,160) 0.6139 (367,183)

Current shares as of December 31 79,349,399 79,580,376

December 31, 2016

Current shares on January 1 80,004,086 1.0000 80,004,086

Net sale of shares repurchase (56,527) 0.6430  (36,345)

Current shares as of December 31 79,947,559 79,967,741

The total shares not included in the basic earnings per share are 2,769,550, see note 18(b).

(20) Commitments-

(a) The Company has the commitment of providing the operating service of sport clubs, and providing different 
services in the sport and recreation areas to the active members, as well as providing some sponsorship services and 
exchange obligations.

(b) As mentioned in note 9, the Company is in process of constructing two new clubs; thus, the estimate cash disburse-
ment necessary to complete the construction of such clubs and be under operating conditions is $61,094. As of Decem-
ber 31, 2017, construction in progress amounted to $17,065.

(21) Contingencies-

(a)	 Lawsuits
The Company is involved in a number of lawsuits and claims arising in the normal course of business. It is expected 
that the final outcome of these matters will not have significant adverse effects on the Company´s financial position 
and income.

(b)	 Tax contingencies
In accordance with Mexican tax law, the tax authorities are empowered to examine transactions carried out during the 
five years prior to the most recent income tax return filed.

In accordance with the Income Tax Law, companies carrying out transactions with related parties are subject to 
certain requirements as to the determination of prices, which should be similar to those that would be used in arm´s-
length transactions.

Should the tax authorities examine the transactions and reject the related-party prices, they could assess additional 
taxes plus the related inflation adjustment and interest, in addition to penalties of up to 100% of the omitted taxes.
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INDICATOR 
GRI DESCRIPTION ANSWER / OMISSION PAGE

Organizational Profile

102-1 Name of the organization Grupo Sports World S.A.B. 
de C.V. 65, 70, 72

102-2 Activities, brands, products, and services 19, 22

102-3 Location of headquarters Mexico City

102-4 Location of operations 26, 70

102-5 Ownership and legal form S.A.B. de C.V. 

102-6 Markets served 19, 22

102-7 Scale of the organization 27

102-8 Information on employees and other workers 27, 29

102-9 Supply chain 38

102-10 Supply chain 22, 26

102-11 Precautionary principle or approach

The caution principle is conside-
red in the elaboration of national 
laws, in line with international 
agreements, therefore, GSW 
addresses this principle implicitly. 

102-12 External initiatives 18, 32, 50

102-13 Membership of associations 36

Strategy
102-14 Statement from senior decision-maker 16-18

102-15 Key impacts, risks, and opportunities 16-18

Ethics and Integrity
102-16 Values, principles, standards, and norms of behavior 6, 50, 54

102-17 Mechanisms for advice and concerns about ethics 54

Governance
102-18 Governance structure 56

102-22 Composition of the highest governance body and its 
committees 56

102-23 Chair of the highest governance body 56

102-25 Conflicts of interest 54

102-27 Collective knowledge of highest governance body http://www.sportsworld.com.mx/
seccion/inversionistas 56

102-32 Highest governance body's role in sustainability reporting 109

102-33 Communicating critical concerns 54

102-34 Nature and total number of critical concerns 54

Stakeholder Engagement
102-40 List of stakeholder groups 51-52

102-42 Identifying and selecting stakeholders 51-52

102-43 Approach to stakeholder engagement 51-52

102-44 Key topics and concerns raised 53

Reporting Practice
102-45 Entities included in the consolidated financial statements 70

102-46 Entities included in the consolidated financial statements 50-52

102-47 List of material topics 52

102-49 Changes in reporting GSW changed from GRI G4 to 
GRI Standards

102-50 Reporting period GSW changed from GRI G4 to 
GRI Standards

GRI CONTENT INDEX / 
ESSENTIAL CONFORMITY OPTION
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INDICATOR 
GRI DESCRIPTION ANSWER / OMISSION PAGE

102-51 Date of most recent report 2016 Annual Report

102-52 Reporting cycle 2016 Annual Report

102-53 Contact point for questions regarding the report 111

102-54 Claims of reporting in accordance with 
the GRI Standards

This report has been elaborated 
in line with GRI standards: Essen-
cial option

102-55 GRI content index 106-110

102-56 External assurance 62

103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary 52

103-2 The management approach and its components 27-47

103-3 Evaluation of the management approach

In 2018 we will evaluate our 
Sustainability strategy based 
on our materiality 2018 and, if 
necessary, there will be changes 
made to our management mo-
del and focus.

ECONOMIC
201-1 Direct economic value generated and distributed 57-60

205-2
Communication and training about anti-corruption 
policies and procedures

To prevent breach of our Code 
of Ethics, we senbilize our colla-
borators in terms of the 10 princi-
ples of the World Pact. To handle 
any discrimination case, we have 
complaint mechanisms.

ENVIRONMENTAL
301-1 Materials used by weight or volume 40, 42

301-2 Recycled input materials used 40, 46

301-3 Reclaimed products and their packaging materials Does not apply

302-1 Energy consumption within the organization 42-43

302-2 Energy consumption outside of the organization 47

302-3 Energy intensity 43

302-4 Reduction of energy consumption 42-43

302-5
Reductions in energy requirements of products 
and services

42-43

303-1 Water withdrawal by source 40

303-3 Water recycled and reused 40

304-2
Significant impacts of activities, products, 
and services on biodiversity 

Does not apply

304-3 Habitats protected or restored 47

305-1 Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions) 44-45

305-2 Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions 44-45

305-3 Other indirect (Scope 3) GHG emissions 44-45

305-4 GHG emissions intensity 45

305-5 Reduction of GHG emissions 44-45

305-7
Nitrogen oxides (NOX), sulfur oxides (SOX), and other 
significant air emissions

45-46

306-1 Water discharge by quality and destination 40

INDICATOR 
GRI DESCRIPTION ANSWER / OMISSION PAGE

SOCIAL
401-1 New employee hires and employee turnover 27-29

401-2
Benefits A1:E55 to full-time employees that are not provi-
ded to temporary or part-time A1:E55

33

401-3 Parental leave 34

403-1
Workers representation in formal joint management–wor-
ker health and safety committees

32

403-2
Types of injury and rates of injury, occupational diseases, 
lost days, and absenteeism, and number of work-related 
fatalities

32

403-3
Workers with high incidence or high risk of diseases 
related to their occupation

32

403-4
Health and safety topics covered in formal agreements 
with trade unions

All of our collaborators are cove-
red with collective agreements.

404-1 Average hours of training per year per employee 30-31

404-2
Programs for upgrading employee skills and transition 
assistance programs

30-31

404-3
Percentage of employees receiving regular performance 
and career development reviews

30-31

405-1 Diversity of governance bodies and employees 28-29, 56

405-2 Ratio of basic salary and remuneration of women to men 33

406-1 Incidents of discrimination and corrective actions taken

To prevent breach of our Code 
of Ethics, we senbilize our colla-
borators in terms of the 10 princi-
ples of the World Pact. To handle 
any discrimination case, we have 
complaint mechanisms.

408-1
Operations and suppliers at significant risk for incidents 
of child labor

33

409-1
Operations and suppliers at significant risk for incidents 
of forced or compulsory labor

33

413-1
Operations with local community engagement, impact 
assessments, and development programs

36-37

416-1
Assessment of the health and safety impacts of product 
and service categories

32-33

417-2
Incidents of non-compliance concerning product and 
service information and labeling

Does not apply

418-1
Substantiated complaints concerning breaches of custo-
mer privacy and losses of customer data

In 2017 we continued to update 
our Integral Notice of Privacy for 
our collaborators, which allows 
us to protect them..




